

Wednesday, April 20, 2022 – 12:15 p.m. Medford Police Department Prescott Room 219 S. Ivy Street, Medford, Oregon 97501

This meeting will be held in person, but you may attend virtually through the following link: <u>https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_6aAXfVWTQbCGzuMYDCv96w</u> The meeting passcode is 504407.

Online participants will be able to view presentation material and submit questions or comments. You can also join by dialing in with your phone; call (669) 900-6833. The meeting ID number is 846 4490 1939, and the meeting passcode is 504407.

AGENDA

11:15 a.m. LUNCH

11:30 a.m. STUDY SESSION – SDCs, CLAs, & Fees (Engineering Manager Brian Runyen and Shawn Koorn, HDR)

12:15 p.m. BOARD MEETING (Shall Begin at the Conclusion of the Study Session)

- 1. Roll Call
- 2. Pledge of Allegiance
- 3. Comments from the Audience Comments will be limited to 4 minutes per individual, group, or organization; please state your name and organization (if applicable) when prompted via teleconference.
- 4. Consent Calendar
 - 4.1 Approval or Correction of the Minutes of the Last Regular Meeting of April 6, 2022
 - 4.2 Resolution 1807, A RESOLUTION Adopting and Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Amended Investment Policy for the Board of Water Commissioners
- 5. Items Removed from Consent Calendar
- 6. Resolution No. 1808, A RESOLUTION Adopting Revisions to Sections 10.5, 10.6, and 18.3 of the "Regulations Governing Water Service", effective April 29, 2022
- 7. Resolution No. 1809, A RESOLUTION Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with Stewart Meadows Golf Course, Rogue Valley Country Club, Quail Point Golf Course, Bear Creek Golf Course, and Centennial Golf Course, and Repealing All Previous Agreements
- 8. Resolution No. 1810, A RESOLUTION Awarding and Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Contract Amendment in the Amount of \$213,890.00 with McClure & Sons, Inc. for the Water Quality Improvement Projects

9. Leadership Team Reports

Leadership Team staff will be present and may provide information: Engineering Manager Brian Runyen, Water Meter & Controls Supervisor Ken Johnson, Water Maintenance Supervisor Lester McFall, Water Quality & Treatment Director Ben Klayman, Interim Finance Manager Anna Roeder, Information Technology Manager Kris Stitt, Human Resources Manager Tanya Haakinson, Customer Service & Water Efficiency Manager Julie Smitherman, and General Manager Brad Taylor.

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION PER ORS 192.660(2)(d) – To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations.

11. Propositions and Remarks from the Commissioners

12. Adjourn

DATES TO REMEMBER*							
DATE	DAY	TYPE OF MEETING	STUDY SESSION TIME & TOPIC	REGULAR MEETING	LOCATION		
05/04/22	Wed	Board Meeting	11:45am – Budget Part A	12:15 p.m.	Prescott Room, Police Dept.		
05/18/22	Wed	Board Meeting	11:45am – Budget Part B	12:15 p.m.	Prescott Room, Police Dept.		
Monday, May 30, 2022 – Offices closed in observance of the Memorial Day Holiday							
06/01/22	Wed	Board Meeting	11:45am – TBD	12:15 p.m.	TBD		
06/15/22	Wed	Board Meeting	11:45am – TBD	12:15 p.m.	TBD		

*Meeting dates, times, and locations are subject to change.



Memorandum

то:	Commissioners Bob Strosser, Michael Smith, John Dailey, Jason Anderson, and Daniel Bunn
FROM:	Anna Roeder, Interim Finance Manager
DATE:	Thursday, April 14, 2022
SUBJECT:	Item 4.2 – Resolution 1807, Adopting an Amended Investment Policy for the Board of Water Commissioners
OBJECTIVE:	Board Approval

Issue

ORS 294.135(a) requires local governments investing in securities with maturities longer than 18 months to annually adopt their investment policies.

Discussion

The Commission last updated the investment policy in May 19th, 2021. In preparation for the annual renewal, Government Portfolio Advisors (GPA) has reviewed the policy for further updates in correlation with the Oregon State Treasurer's (OST) sample policy. Per GPA, the recommendations do not materially change the risk in the policy but provide clarity and procedure regarding certain processes. This ensures that the policy is meeting the requirements established by the State Treasurer oversight committee.

GPA's attached memo dated April 8th, 2022, details the recommendations and updated language to the investment policy.

Financial Impact

None.

Requested Board Action

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 1807, adopting and authorizing the General Manager to execute an amended investment policy.





To: Brad Taylor and Anna Roeder, Medford Water Commission From: Deanne Woodring and Whitney Maher Date: April 8, 2022 Re: Investment Policy Review/Update 2022

ORS 294.135(a) requires local governments investing in securities with maturities longer than 18 months to annually adopt their investment policies. The Commission adopted the policy in June 2021. The policy is being presented for re-adoption for 2022 with the following revisions:

GPA is making the following recommendations:

- ✓ Update Section 3. Scope consider updating the expected range of funds if appropriate
- ✓ Combine US Agency Primary/US Agency secondary into single category US Agency Obligations to align with statute
- ✓ Include short term municipal ratings language per statute
- ✓ Update Banker's Acceptance language to follow statute regarding short-term ratings
- ✓ Add maximum maturities to diversification table

Changes are noted in *italics* below:

1. Combine US Agency Primary/Secondary - GPA recommends combining into single category US Agency Obligations, which will be more consistent with statute.

Recommended Language:

US Agency Obligations: Federal agency and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States Government (GSEs) and obligations whose payment is guaranteed by the United States, the agencies and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States Government. [ORS Section 294.035(3)(a)].

2. Municipal Debt – Include statute language regarding short-term ratings.

Recommended Language:

Municipal Debt: Lawfully issued debt obligations of the States of Oregon, California, Idaho and Washington and political subdivisions of those states if the obligations have a long-term rating on the settlement date of AA- or better by S&P or Aa3 or better by Moody's or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization, *or are rated on the settlement date in the highest category for short-term municipal debt by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.* [ORS 294.035(3)(b)] [ORS Section 294.035(3)(c)].



3. Banker's Acceptance – Update language to follow statute regarding short-term ratings requirements (moves minimum rating from A1+ to A1).

Recommended Language:

Banker's Acceptance: A short-term credit investment created by a non-financial firm and guaranteed by a qualified financial institution whose *short-term letter of credit rating is rated in the highest category without any refinement or gradation by one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. For the purposes of this paragraph, "qualified financial institution" means: (i) A financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon; or (ii) S financial institution that is wholly owned by a financial holding company or a bank holding company that owns a financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon. [ORS Section 294.035(3)(h)(A)]*

4. Updated Diversification Table – this will reflect the above-mentioned changes, as well as include the maximum maturities for each individual security type for reference convenience.

Issue Type	Maximum % Holdings	Maximum % per Issuer	Ratings S&P, Moody's, or Equivalent NRSRO	Maximum Maturity
US Treasury Obligations	100%	None	N/A	5.25 years
US Agency Obligations	100%	35%	N/A	5.25 years
Municipal Bonds (OR, CA, ID, WA)	25%	10%	AA- / Aa3	5.25 years
Corporate Bonds	- 35%**	5%***	AA- / Aa3	5.25 years
Commercial Paper	- 30%**	570	A1 / P1	270 days
Certificates of Deposit	20%	5%	Oregon Public Depository	5.25 years
Bank Time Deposits/Savings Accounts	50%	25%	Oregon Public Depository	n/a
Banker's Acceptance	25%	5%	A1 / P1 AA- / Aa3 Underlying	180 days
Oregon Short Term Fund	Maximum allowed per ORS 294.810	None	N/A	N/A

*Short Term Ratings: Moody's - P1/MIG1/VMIG1. S&P - A-1/SP-1, Fitch F1

**35% maximum combined corporate and commercial paper per ORS.

***Issuer constraints apply to the combined issues in corporate and commercial paper holdings.

Medford Water Commission Investment Policy





Resolution # <mark>1769</mark>1807 June 202<u>2</u>1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	3
2.	GOVERNING AUTHORITY	3
3.	SCOPE	3
4.	OBJECTIVES	3
5.	STANDARDS OF CARE	4
6.	TRANSACTION COUNTERPARTIES	5
7.	ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATIONS	7
8.	AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS	8
9.	INVESTMENT PARAMETERS	. 10
10.	INVESTMENT OF PROCEEDS FROM DEBT ISSUANCE	<u>3</u> 13
11.	INVESTMENT OF RESERVE OR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS	. 13
12.	GUIDELINE MEASUREMENT AND ADHERENCE	. 13
13.	REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE	<u>4</u> 14
14.	POLICY MAINTENANCE AND CONSIDERATIONS	. 14

Page 2 of 20

INVESTMENT POLICY FOR MEDFORD WATER COMMISSION

1. INTRODUCTION

This Investment Policy defines the parameters within which funds are to be invested by the Medford Water Commission. The Medford Water Commission is an autonomous agency of the City of Medford whose purpose is to furnish water for the City of Medford. This policy also formalizes the framework, pursuant to ORS 294.135, for the Medford Water Commission's investment activities to ensure effective and judicious management of funds within the scope of this policy.

These guidelines are intended to be broad enough to allow designated investment staff and investment advisor to function properly within the parameters of responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately safeguard the investment assets.

2. GOVERNING AUTHORITY

The Medford Water Commission's investment program shall be operated in conformance with Oregon Revised Statutes and applicable Federal Law. Specifically, this investment policy is written in conformance with ORS 294.035; 294.040; 294.052, 294.135; 294.145; and 294.810. All funds within the scope of this policy are subject to regulations established by the state of Oregon. Any revisions or extensions of these sections of the ORS shall be assumed to be part of this Investment Policy immediately upon being enacted.

3. SCOPE

This policy applies to activities of the Medford Water Commission with regard to investing the financial assets of operating funds and capital funds. Investments of employees' retirement funds, deferred compensation plans and other funds are not covered by this policy. The amount of funds falling within the scope of this policy over the next three years is expected to range between \$15 million and \$25 million.

4. OBJECTIVES

The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be:

4.1 Preservation of Capital:

Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The goal is to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk.

4.2 Liquidity:

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements. Furthermore, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale markets. A portion of the portfolio also may be placed in the Oregon Short Term Fund which offers next-day liquidity. Where possible and prudent, the portfolio should be structured so that investments mature concurrent with anticipated demands.

4.3 Return:

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into consideration the safety and liquidity needs of the portfolio. Although return consists of both principal return (gains and losses due to market value fluctuations) and income return (yield), this policy discourages active trading and turnover of investments. Investments should generally be held to maturity.

5. STANDARDS OF CARE

5.1 Prudence:

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal liability for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments within a timely fashion as defined in this policy. The "prudent person" standard states:

"Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived."

5.2 Ethics and Conflicts of Interest:

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business. Disclosure shall be made to the Board of Water Commissioners. They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the Medford Water Commission. Officers and employees shall, at all times, comply with the State of Oregon Government Standards and Practices code of ethics set forth in ORS Chapter 244.

5.3 Delegation of Authority and Responsibilities:

Governing Body:

The Board of Water Commissioners will retain ultimate fiduciary responsibility for invested funds. The Board will receive reports pursuant to and with sufficient detail to comply with ORS 294.085 and 294.155.

Delegation of Authority:

Authority to manage investments within the scope of this policy and operate the investment program in accordance with established written procedures and internal controls is granted to the Manager hereinafter referred to as Investment Officer, and derived from the following: ORS 294.035 to 294.053, 294.125 to 294.145, and 294.810.

Page 4 of 20

No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Investment Officer. The Investment Officer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials.

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public trust. No officer or designee may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and supporting procedures.

Investment Committee:

The Board of Water Commissioners will function as the investment committee to provide guidance to the Investment Officer and monitor investment policy compliance.

Investment Advisor:

The Medford Water Commission may engage the services of an external investment manager to assist in the management of the investment portfolio in a manner consistent with this policy. The Investment Advisor may only be granted non-discretionary authority, requiring approval to purchase and sell securities. The advisor may be authorized to transact directly with approved dealer relationships on behalf of the Medford Water Commission.

6. TRANSACTION COUNTERPARTIES

6.1 Broker/Dealers:

The Investment Officer shall determine which broker/dealer firms and registered representatives are authorized for the purposes of investing funds within the scope of this investment policy. A list will be maintained of approved broker/dealer firms and affiliated registered representatives.

The following minimum criteria must be met prior to authorizing investment transactions. The Investment Officer may impose more stringent criteria:

Broker/Dealer firms must meet the following minimum criteria:

- a) Be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
- b) Be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
- c) Provide most recent audited financials
- d) Provide FINRA Focus Report filings

Approved broker/dealer employees who execute transactions with the Medford Water Commission must meet the following minimum criteria:

- a) Be a registered representative with FINRA
- b) Be licensed by the State of Oregon
- c) Certify in writing having read, understood, and agreed to comply with the most current version of this investment policy
- d) Have notified the Medford Water Commission within 30 days of the initiation of any formal investigation or disciplinary action initiated by the federal or state regulators.

The Investment Officer will conduct at least annual reviews of all listed broker/dealers and their respective authorized registered representatives.

Factors considered would include but not be limited to:

- Pending investigations by securities regulators.
- Significant changes in net capital.
- Pending customer arbitration cases.
- Regulatory enforcement actions.

If the Medford Water Commission's investment advisor is contracted to provide securities transactions on behalf of the Medford Water Commission, the advisor's broker/dealer list must be provided to the Custodial Officer for approval. The Custodial Officer can assign the responsibility of broker/dealer due diligence process to the Advisor, and all licensing information on the counterparties will be maintained by the Advisor and available upon request.

The advisor broker/dealer review should include:

- i. FINRA Certification check
- ii. Firm Profile
- iii. Firm History
- iv. Firm Operations
- v. Disclosures of Arbitration Awards, Disciplinary and Regulatory Events
- vi. State Registration Verification
- vii. Financial review of acceptable FINRA capital requirements or letter of credit for clearing settlements.

The advisors must provide the Medford Water Commission with any changes to the list prior to transacting on behalf of the Medford Water Commission.

6.2 Investment Advisors:

An Investment Advisor may be selected by conducting a process of due diligence. The following items are required for the approved Investment Advisors:

- a) The Investment Advisor firm must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or licensed by the state of Oregon.
- b) All Investment Advisor firm representatives conducting investment transactions on behalf of the Medford Water Commission must be registered representatives with FINRA.
- c) All Investment Advisor firm representatives conducting investment transactions on behalf of the Medford Water Commission must be licensed by the state of Oregon.
- Contract terms will include that the Investment Advisor comply with the Commissions Investment Policy.
- e) All engaged Investment Advisors must provide notification within 30 days of any formal investigation or disciplinary action initiated by federal or state regulators.

The Investment Officer will conduct at least annual reviews of engaged Investment Advisors to determine their continued eligibility within the guidelines of this policy. The Investment Advisor must notify the Medford Water Commission immediately if any of the following issues arise while serving under a Medford Water Commission contract:

- a) Pending investigations by securities regulators
- b) Significant changes in net capital
- c) Pending customer arbitration cases
- d) Regulatory enforcement actions

The Medford Water Commission will seek investment advisory services through an RFP process.

6.3 Depositories:

All financial institutions who desire to become depositories must be qualified Oregon Depositories pursuant to ORS Chapter 295.

6.3 Competitive Transactions:

- a) The Investment Officer shall obtain and document competitive bid information on all investments purchased or sold in the secondary market. Competitive bids or offers should be obtained, when possible, from at least three separate brokers/financial institutions or through the use of a nationally recognized trading platform.
- b) In the instance of a security for which there is no readily available competitive bid or offering on the same specific issue, then the Investment Officer shall document quotations for comparable or alternative securities.
- c) When purchasing original issue instrumentality securities, no competitive offerings will be required as all dealers in the selling group offer those securities at the same original issue price. However, the Investment Officer shall document quotations on comparable securities.
- If an Investment Advisor provides investment management services, the Advisor must retain documentation of competitive pricing execution on each transaction and provide upon request.

7. ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATIONS

7.1 Delivery vs. Payment:

All trades of marketable securities will be executed (cleared and settled) by delivery versus payment to ensure that securities are deposited in the Medford Water Commission's safekeeping institution prior to the release of funds. The Medford Water Commission will have online access through the safekeeping bank for verification of the account holdings and transactions.

7.2 Third party Safekeeping:

Securities will be held by an independent third-party safekeeping institution selected by the Medford Water Commission. Upon request, the safekeeping institution shall make available a copy of its Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) No. 16.

7.3 Internal Controls:

The Investment Officer and the Medford Water Commission are responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure designed to reasonably assure that invested funds are invested within the parameters of this Investment policy and protected from loss, theft or misuse. Specifics for the internal controls shall be documented in writing. The established control structure shall be reviewed and updated periodically by the Investment Officer.

Page 7 of 20

The internal controls shall address, at a minimum, the following:

- a) Compliance with Investment Policy
- b) Control Collusion
- c) Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping
- d) Custodial safekeeping
- e) Avoidance of physical delivery of securities whenever possible and address control requirements for physical delivery when necessary
- f) Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members
- g) Confirmation of transaction for investment and wire transfers in written or digitally verifiable electronic form.
- h) Dual authorization of wire transfers and ACH's
- i) Staff training
- j) Review, maintenance, and monitoring of security procedures both manual and automated

7.4 Annual Independent Review:

An external auditor shall provide an annual independent review to assure compliance with Oregon state law and Medford Water Commission policies and procedures.

8. AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS

8.1 Investment Types and Credit Guidelines:

All investments of the Medford Water Commission shall be made in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes: ORS 294.035 (Investment of surplus funds of political subdivisions; approved investments), ORS 294.040 (Restriction on investments under ORS 294.035), ORS 294.135 (Investment maturity dates), ORS 294.145 (Prohibited conduct for Treasurer including not committing to invest funds or sell securities more than 14 business days prior to the anticipated date of settlement), ORS 294.805 to 294.895 (State Investment Pool). Bond proceeds may be invested under guidance of ORS 294.052. If additional types of securities are considered for investment, per Oregon state statute they will not be eligible for investment until this Policy has been amended and adopted by the Board of Water Commissioners.

The following investments are permitted pursuant to ORS 294.035, 294.040, and ORS 294.810. Minimum credit ratings and percentages apply at the time of purchase.

US Treasury Obligations: U.S. Treasury and other government obligations that carry the full faith and credit guarantee of the United States for the timely payment of principal and interest [ORS Section 294.035(3)(a)].

US Agency Obligations - Primary: Senior debenture obligations of US federal agencies and instrumentalities or U.S. government sponsored enterprises (GSE) that have actively traded markets and provide a higher level of liquidity. These include Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB), and the Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation<u>Federal agency</u> and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States, the

Commented [WM1]: GPA recommends combining US Agency Primary/US Agency Secondary to align with state statute

Page 8 of 20

agencies and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States Government (FFCB) [ORS Section 294.035(3)(a)].

US Agency Obligations - Secondary: Other US government sponsored enterprises that are less marketable are considered secondary GSEs. They include but are not limited to: Private Export Funding Corporation (PEFCO), Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA), Financing Corporation (FICO) and Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation, (Farmer Mac). Securities must be rated by S&P or Moody's or any nationally recognized statistical rating organization [ORS-Section 294.035(3)(a)].

Municipal Debt: Lawfully issued debt obligations of the States of Oregon, California, Idaho and Washington and political subdivisions of those states if the obligations have a long-term rating on the settlement date of AA- or better by S&P or Aa3 or better by Moody's or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization, or are rated on the settlement date in the highest category for short-term municipal debt by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. [ORS Section 294.035(3)(b)(c)].

Corporate Indebtedness: Corporate indebtedness subject to a valid registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or issued under the authority of section 3(a)(2) or 3(a)3 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Corporate indebtedness must be rated on the settlement date AA- or better by S&P or Aa3 or better by Moody's or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization [ORS 294.035(3)(i)].

Commercial Paper: Corporate indebtedness subject to a valid registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or issued under the authority of section 3(a)(2) or 3(a)3 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Commercial Paper must be rated A1 by S&P or P1 by Moody's or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Issuer constraints for commercial paper combined with corporate notes will be limited by statute to 5% of market value per issuer [ORS 294.035(3)(i)].

Certificates of Deposit: Certificates of deposit in insured institutions as defined in ORS Section 706.008, in credit unions as defined in ORS Section 723.006, or in federal credit unions, if the institution or credit union maintains a head office or a branch in this state [ORS Section 294.035(3)(d)].

Bank Time Deposits/Savings Accounts: Bank Time Deposits and savings accounts in insured institutions as defined in ORS Section 706.008, in credit unions as defined in ORS Section 723.006, or in federal credit unions, if the institution or credit union maintains a head office or a branch in this state [ORS Section 294.035(3)(d)].

Banker's Acceptance: A short-term credit investment created by a non-financial firm and guaranteed by a qualified financial institution whose <u>short-term letter of credit rating is rated</u> in the highest category without any refinement or gradation by one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. For the purposes of this paragraph, "qualified financial institution" means: (i) A financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon; or (ii) S financial institution that is wholly owned by a financial holding company or a bank holding company that owns a financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon. Jong term letter of credit rating must have an A1+ rating by S&P or P1 from Moody's or an equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization [ORS Section 294.035(3)(h)].

Commented [WM2]: Updated to follow statute language - moves minimum rating from A1+ to A1

Page 9 of 20

Oregon Short Term Fund: The Oregon Short Term Fund (OSTF), also named the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), is an open-ended, no-load diversified portfolio offered to eligible participants that includes, but is not limited to, any municipality, political subdivision or public corporation of the State of Oregon that by law is made the custodian of, or has control of, any public funds. The LGIP is commingled with the State of Oregon's short-term funds. Oregon's LGIP was created by ORS Chapter 748. The OSTF is allowed to invest up to 50% of the funds in Corporate securities down to a single A rating. The maximum maturity is 3 years, and 50% of the pool must mature or reset within 93 days. The portfolio is managed by Treasury professionals at the State of Oregon. The fund is expected to maintain \$1.00 per every dollar put into the fund, but \$1.00 Net Asset Value is not guaranteed. The Commission's total fund balance held in the pool is limited by statute [ORS Section 294.035(3)(I)].

8.2 Collateralization:

Repurchase Agreements:

- a) ORS 294.035 (3) requires repurchase agreement collateral to be limited in maturity to three years and priced according to percentages prescribed by written policy of the Oregon Investment Council or the Oregon Short Term Fund Board.
- b) ORS 294.135 (3) limits the maximum term of any repurchase agreement to 90 days.
- c) The following margins are required:
 - US Treasury Securities: 102%
 - US Agency Discount and Coupon Securities: 102%
 - Mortgage Backed and Other*: 103%
 - *Limited to those securities described in ORS 294.035(1)

8.3 Prohibited Investments:

- 8.3.1 US Agency Mortgage-backed Securities: US agency mortgage-backed securities such as those securities by FNMA and FHLMC are not allowed.
- 8.3.2 Private Placement or "144A" Securities: Private placement or "144A" securities are not allowed. This includes commercial paper issued under section 4(2)144A (also known as "4(2)A") of the Securities Act of 1933.
- 8.3.3 Securities Lending and Reverse Repurchase Agreements: The Medford Water Commission shall not lend securities nor directly participate in a securities lending or reverse repurchase program.

9. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS

9.1 Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt. Credit risk will be mitigated by the following guidelines:

a. Diversification: It is the policy of the Medford Water Commission to diversify its investments. Where appropriate, exposures will be limited by security type, maturity,

Page 10 of 20

issuance, issuer and security type. Allowed security types and investment exposure limitations are detailed in the table below.

- b. Investment Credit Ratings: Investments must have a rating from at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, such as: Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's or Fitch Ratings Service. Ratings used to apply the guidelines below should be investment level ratings and not issuer level ratings.
- c. Restriction on Municipal Issuers with Prior Default History: Per ORS 294.040, the bonds of issuers listed in ORS 294.035 (3)(a) to (c) may be purchased only if there has been no default in payment of either the principal of or the interest on the obligations of the issuing Commission, port, school district or city, for a period of twenty years next preceding the date of the investment.

Issue Type	Maximum % Holdings	Maximum % per Issuer	Ratings S&P, Moody's, or Equivalent NRSRO	Maximum Maturity
US Treasury Obligations	100%	None	N/A	5.25 years
US Agency Obligations	100%	35%	N/A	5.25 years
Municipal Bonds (OR, CA, ID, WA)	25%	10%	AA- / Aa3 Short Term*	5.25 years
Corporate Bonds	- 35%**	5%***	AA- / Aa3	5.25 years
Commercial Paper	- 35%""	5%	A1 / P1	270 days
Certificates of Deposit	20%	5%	Oregon Public Depository	5.25 years
Bank Time Deposits/Savings Accounts	50%	25%	Oregon Public Depository	n/a
Banker's Acceptance	25%	5%	A1 / P1 AA- / Aa3 Underlying	180 days
Oregon Short Term Fund	Maximum allowed per ORS 294.810	None	N/A	N/A
*Short Term Ratings: Moody's - P1/MIG1/VMI **35% maximum combined corporate and con		F1		

Exposure Constraints:

*35% maximum combined corporate and commercial paper per ORS.

***Issuer constraints apply to the combined issues in corporate and commercial paper holdings.

9.2 Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that there that there may not be enough cash balances available to provide for demand payments. The following strategies will be employed to mitigate liquidity risks:

- a. The amount of at least 10% of funds available for investing will be invested in the Oregon Short Term Fund, with a qualified depository institution, or investments maturing in less than 30 days to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.
- b. Reserve or Capital Improvement Project monies may be invested in securities exceeding the maximum term if the maturities of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds.
- c. Operating funds in excess of liquidity requirements will be invested subject to the Total Portfolio Maturity Constraints following. Portfolio investment maturities will be limited as follows:

Total Portfolio Maturity Constraints:

Maturity Constraints	Minimum % of Total Portfolio
Under 30 days	10%
Under 1 year	25%
Under 5.25 years	100%
Maturity Constraints	Maximum of Total Portfolio in Years
Weighted Average Maturity	2.50
Security Structure Constraint	Maximum % of Total Portfolio
Callable Agency Securities	25%

9.3 Interest Rate Risk:

Longer-term investments have the potential to achieve higher returns but are also likely to exhibit higher market value volatility due to the changes in the general level of interest rates over the life of the investment. Interest rate risk will be mitigated by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow purposes. The following strategies will be employed to control and mitigate adverse changes in the market value of the portfolio due to changes in interest rates:

- a) Where feasible and prudent, investment maturities should be matched with expected cash outflows to mitigate market risk.
- b) Investment policy is to invest in securities that are held to maturity. Securities may be sold before maturity in furtherance of the General Objectives of this policy.
- c) To the extent feasible, investment maturities not matched with cash outflows, including liquidity investments under one year, should be staggered to mitigate reinvestment risk.

- d) No commitments to buy or sell securities may be made more than 14 days prior to the anticipated settlement date or receive a fee other than interest for future deliveries.
- e) The maximum percent of callable securities in the portfolio shall be 25%;
- f) The maximum stated final maturity of individual securities in the portfolio shall be five and one guarter (5.25) years, except as otherwise stated in this policy.
- g) The maximum portfolio average maturity (measured with stated final maturity) shall be 2.5 years.

10. INVESTMENT OF PROCEEDS FROM DEBT ISSUANCE

Investments of bond proceeds are restricted under bond covenants that may be more restrictive than the investment parameters included in this policy. Bond proceeds shall be invested in accordance with the parameters of this policy and the applicable bond covenants and tax laws.

Funds from bond proceeds and amounts held in a bond payment reserve or proceeds fund may be invested pursuant to ORS 294.052. Investments of bond proceeds are typically not invested for resale and are maturity matched with outflows. Consequently, funds within the scope of ORS 294.052 are not subject to this policy's liquidity risk constraints within section 9.2.

Information will be maintained for arbitrage rebate calculations.

11. INVESTMENT OF RESERVE OR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

Pursuant to ORS 294.135(1)(b), Reserve or Capital Improvement project monies may be invested in securities exceeding five and a quarter (5.25) years when the funds in question are being accumulated for an anticipated use that will occur more than 18 months after the funds are invested. With approval of the Board of Water Commissioners, the maturity of the investment or investments made with the funds may occur when the funds are expected to be used.

12. GUIDELINE MEASUREMENT AND ADHERENCE

12.1 Guideline Measurements:

Guideline measurements will use market value investments.

12.2 Guideline compliance:

- a. If the portfolio falls outside of compliance with adopted investment policy guidelines or is being managed inconsistently with this policy, the Investment Officer shall bring the portfolio back into compliance in a prudent manner and as soon as prudently feasible. All violations and recommended actions to bring back into compliance will be reported to the Board of Water Commissioners at the next scheduled meeting.
- b. Due to fluctuations in the aggregate surplus funds balance, maximum percentages for a particular issuer or investment type may be exceeded at a point in time. Securities need not be liquidated to realign the portfolio; however, consideration should be given to this matter when future purchases are made to ensure that appropriate diversification is maintained. Any violations due to aggregate balances will be reported to the Board of Water Commissioners at the next scheduled meeting.

Page 13 of 20

c. If the credit rating of a properly acquired security is downgraded below the minimum rating level for a new investment in that security, the Investment Officer and Advisor shall evaluate the downgrade on a case-by-case basis in order to determine if the security should be held or sold. The Investment Officer and Advisor will notify the Board of Water Commissioners of the downgrade and their recommended action at the next scheduled meeting.

13. REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE

13.1 Compliance:

The Investment Officer shall prepare a report at least quarterly that allows the Medford Water Commission to ascertain whether investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the investment policy. The report will include, at a minimum, the following:

- a. A listing of all investments held during the reporting period showing: par/face value, accounting book value, market value, type of investment, issuer, credit ratings, yield to maturity.
- b. Average maturity of the portfolio at period-end.
- c. Maturity distribution of the portfolio at period-end.
- d. Average weighted yield to maturity and yield to worst if callable of portfolio.
- e. Distribution by type of investment.
- f. Transactions since last report.
- g. Distribution of transactions among financial counterparties such as broker/dealers.
- h. Violations of portfolio guidelines or non-compliance issues that occurred during the prior period or that are outstanding. This report should also note actions (taken or planned) to bring the portfolio back into compliance.

13.2 Performance Standards and Evaluation:

The investment officer shall document an investment return comparison of the investment portfolio to a comparative market index. These returns will be provided to the Medford Water Commission at least annually.

When comparing annual performance, all fees and expenses involved with managing the portfolio shall be included in the computation of the portfolio's rate of return.

13.3 Mark to Market:

The market value of the portfolio shall be calculated at least monthly and a statement of the market value of the portfolio shall be reviewed monthly by the Investment Officer.

13.4 Audits:

Management shall establish an annual process of independent review by the external auditor to assure compliance with internal controls. Such audit will include tests deemed appropriate by the auditor.

14. POLICY MAINTENANCE AND CONSIDERATIONS

14.1 Review:

The investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure its consistency and effectiveness with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and return and its compliance with current law. The annual review should also serve as a venue to suggest policies and improvements to the investment program and shall include an investment plan for the coming year.

14.2 Policy Adoption and Amendments:

This investment policy and any modifications to this policy must be adopted by resolution of the Medford Water Commission.

Regardless of whether this policy is submitted to the OSTF Board for comment, this policy shall be re-submitted not less than annually to the Board of Water Commissioners for approval.

15. GLOSSARY OF KEY INVESTMENT TERMS

Accrued Interest. Interest earned but which has not yet been paid or received.

Agency. See "Federal Agency Securities."

Bankers' Acceptance (BA's). A draft or bill of exchange drawn upon and accepted by a bank. Frequently used to finance shipping of international goods. Used as a short-term credit instrument, bankers' acceptances are traded at a discount from face value as a money market instrument in the secondary market on the basis of the credit quality of the guaranteeing bank.

Basis Points. A basis point is a unit of measure used in finance to describe the percentage change in the value or rate of a financial instrument. One basis point is equivalent to 0.01% (1/100th of a percent) or 0.0001 in decimal form. In most cases, it refers to changes in interest rates and bond yields.

Benchmark. A market index used as a comparative basis for measuring the performance of an investment portfolio. A performance benchmark should represent a close correlation to investment guidelines, risk tolerance and duration of the actual portfolio's investments. **Bond Ratings: Corporation's Ability to most its Financial Obligation**

	S&P	Moody's	
Extremely Strong Capacity, Highest Quality		- Aaa	
Minimal Credit Risk			
Very Strong Capacity, High Quality Low Credit Risk	AA+	-Aa1	
	AA	_ Aa2	
	AA	Aa3	
Strong Capacity, Upper Medium Grade Subject to Low Credit Risk		<u></u>	
	A		
		- A3	
Weakened Capacity, Medium Grade Subject to Moderate Credit Risk		BBB+ Baa	4
······································	BBB	Baa2	
	BBB-	Baa3	
Exposure to Adverse conditions, Subject to Substantial Credit Risk		BB+ Ba1	-
	BB	-Ba2	
	BB-	Ba3	

Broker/Dealer. A person or firm transacting securities business with customers. A "broker" acts as an agent between buyers and sellers and receives a commission for these services. A "dealer" buys and sells financial assets from its own portfolio. A dealer takes risk by owning inventory of securities, whereas a broker merely matches up buyers and sellers. See also "Primary Dealer." **Certificate of Deposit (CD).** Bank obligation issued by a financial institution generally offering a fixed rate of return (coupon) for a specified period of time (maturity).

Collateral. Investment securities or other property that a borrower pledges to secure repayment of a loan, secure deposits of public monies, or provide security for a repurchase agreement.

Commercial Paper. Short term unsecured promissory note issued by a company or financial institution. Issued at a discount and matures for par or face value. Usually a maximum maturity of 270 days, and given a short-term debt rating by one or more NRSROs

Corporate Note. A debt instrument issued by a corporation with a maturity of greater than one year and less than ten years.

Page 16 of 20

Counterparty. The other party in a two-party financial transaction. "Counterparty risk" refers to the risk that the other party to a transaction will fail in its related obligations. For example, the bank or broker/dealer in a repurchase agreement.

Current Yield. Annual rate of return on a bond based on its price. Calculated as (coupon rate / price), but does <u>not</u> accurately reflect a bond's true yield level.

Custody. Safekeeping services offered by a bank, financial institution or trust company, referred to as the "custodian." Service normally includes the holding and reporting of the customer's securities, the collection and disbursement of income, securities settlement and market values.

Delivery Versus Payment (DVP). Settlement procedure in which securities are delivered versus payment of cash, but only after cash has been received. Most security transactions, including those through the Fed Securities Wire system and DTC, are done DVP as a protection for both the buyer and seller of securities.

Depository Trust Company (DTC). A firm through which members can use a computer to arrange for securities to be delivered to other members without physical delivery of certificates. A member of the Federal Reserve System and owned mostly by the New York Stock Exchange, the Depository Trust Company uses computerized debit and credit entries. Most corporate securities, commercial paper, CDs and BAs clear through DTC.

Discount Notes. Unsecured general obligations issued by Federal Agencies at a discount. Discount notes mature at par and can range in maturity from overnight to one year. Discount Notes typically have very large primary (new issue) and secondary markets.

Diversification. Dividing investment funds among a variety of security types, maturities, industries and issuers offering potentially independent returns.

Federal Agency Security. A debt instrument issued by one of the federal agencies. Federal agencies are considered second in credit quality and liquidity only to U.S. Treasuries.

Federal Agency. Government sponsored/owned entity created by the U.S. Congress, generally for the purpose of acting as a financial intermediary by borrowing in the marketplace and directing proceeds to specific areas of the economy considered to otherwise have restricted access to credit markets.

1

Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation (FFCB). A Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) system that is a network of cooperatively owned lending institutions that provide credit services to farmers, agricultural cooperatives and rural utilities. The FFCBs act as financial intermediaries that borrow money in the capital markets and use the proceeds to make loans and provide other assistance to farmers and farm-affiliated businesses. Consists of the consolidated operations of the Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, and Federal Land Banks. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. FFCB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and agricultural industry. Also issues notes under its "designated note" program.

Federal Home Loan Bank System (FHLB). A Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) system, consisting of wholesale banks (currently twelve district banks) owned by their member banks, which provides correspondent banking services and credit to various financial institutions, financed by the issuance of securities. The principal purpose of the FHLB is to add liquidity to the mortgage markets. Although FHLB does not directly fund mortgages, it provides a stable supply of credit to thrift institutions that make new mortgage loans. FHLB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. Also issues notes under its "global note" and "TAP" programs.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or "Freddie Mac"). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides stability and assistance to the secondary market for home mortgages by purchasing first mortgages and

Page 17 of 20

participation interests financed by the sale of debt and guaranteed mortgage backed securities. FHLMC debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities and MBS. Also issues notes under its "reference note" program.

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or "Fannie Mae"). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides liquidity to the residential mortgage market by purchasing mortgage loans from lenders, financed by the issuance of debt securities and MBS (pools of mortgages packaged together as a security). FNMA debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities and MBS. Also issues notes under its "benchmark note" program.

Federal Reserve Bank. One of the 12 distinct banks of the Federal Reserve System.

Federal Reserve System (the Fed). The independent central bank system of the United States that establishes and conducts the nation's monetary policy. This is accomplished in three major ways: (1) raising or lowering bank reserve requirements, (2) raising or lowering the target Fed Funds Rate and Discount Rate, and (3) in open market operations by buying and selling government securities. The Federal Reserve System is made up of twelve Federal Reserve District Banks, their branches, and many national and state banks throughout the nation. It is headed by the seven member Board of Governors known as the "Federal Reserve Board" and headed by its Chairman.

Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE). Privately owned entity subject to federal regulation and supervision, created by the U.S. Congress to reduce the cost of capital for certain borrowing sectors of the economy such as students, farmers, and homeowners. GSEs carry the implicit backing of the U.S. Government, but they are not direct obligations of the U.S. Government. For this reason, these securities will offer a yield premium over Treasuries. Some consider GSEs to be stealth recipients of corporate welfare. Examples of GSEs include: FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA and SLMA.

Government Sponsored Enterprise Security. A security issued by a Government Sponsored Enterprise. Considered Federal Agency Securities.

Index. A compilation of statistical data that tracks changes in the economy or in financial markets. **Investment Advisor.** A company that provides professional advice managing portfolios, investment recommendations and/or research in exchange for a management fee.

Liquidity. Relative ease of converting an asset into cash without significant loss of value. Also, a relative measure of cash and near-cash items in a portfolio of assets. Also, a term describing the marketability of a money market security correlating to the narrowness of the spread between the bid and ask prices.

Market Value. The fair market value of a security or commodity. The price at which a willing buyer and seller would pay for a security.

Maturity Date. Date on which principal payment of a financial obligation is to be paid.

Municipal Obligations. A debt instrument issued by a state or local government unit or public agency. The vast majority of municipals are exempt from state and federal income tax, although some non-qualified issues are taxable.

NRSRO. A "Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization." A designated rating organization that the SEC has deemed a strong national presence in the U.S. NRSROs provide credit ratings on corporate and bank debt issues. Only ratings of a NRSRO may be used for the regulatory purposes of rating such as Moody's, S&P, Fitch and Duff & Phelps.

Par Value. Face value, stated value or maturity value of a security.

Page 18 of 20

Principal. Face value of a financial instrument on which interest accrues. May be less than par value if some principal has been repaid or retired. For a transaction, principal is par value times price and includes any premium or discount.

Prudent Person Standard. Standard that requires that when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee will act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the agency. More stringent than the "prudent person" standard as it implies a level of knowledge commensurate with the responsibility at hand.

Rate of Return. Amount of income received from an investment, expressed as a percentage of the amount invested.

Repurchase Agreement (Repo). A short-term investment vehicle where an investor agrees to buy securities from a counterparty and simultaneously agrees to resell the securities back to the counterparty at an agreed upon time and for an agreed upon price. The difference between the purchase price and the sale price represents interest earned on the agreement. In effect, it represents a collateralized loan to the investor, where the securities are the collateral. Can be DVP, where securities are delivered to the investor's custodial bank, or "tri-party" where the securities are delivered to a third party intermediary. Any type of security can be used as "collateral," but only some types provide the investor with special bankruptcy protection under the law. Repos should be undertaken only when an appropriate approved master repurchase agreement is in place.

State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool. The LGIP is organized pursuant to ORS 294.805 through 294.895. Participation in the Pool will not exceed the maximum limit annually set by ORS 294.810.

Safekeeping. Service offered for a fee, usually by financial institutions, for the holding of securities and other valuables. Safekeeping is a component of custody services.

Total Return. Investment performance measured over a period of time that includes coupon interest, interest on interest, and both realized and unrealized gains or losses. Total return includes, therefore, any market value appreciation/depreciation on investments held at period end.

Treasuries. Collective term used to describe debt instruments backed by the U.S. Government and issued through the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Includes Treasury bills, Treasury notes, and Treasury bonds. Also a benchmark term used as a basis by which the yields of non-Treasury securities are compared (e.g., "trading at 50 basis points over Treasuries").

Treasury Bills (T-Bills). Short-term direct obligations of the United States Government issued with an original term of one year or less. Treasury bills are sold at a discount from face value and do not pay interest before maturity. The difference between the purchase price of the bill and the maturity value is the interest earned on the bill. Currently, the U.S. Treasury issues 4-week, 13-week and 26-week T-Bills.

Treasury Bonds. Long-term interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. Government and issued with maturities of ten years and longer by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. The Treasury stopped issuing Treasury Bonds in August 2001.

Treasury Notes. Intermediate interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. Government and issued with maturities ranging from one to ten years by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. The Treasury currently issues 2-year, 5-year and 10-year Treasury Notes.

Yield to Maturity (YTM). Calculated return on an investment, assuming all cash flows from the security are reinvested at the same original yield. Can be higher or lower than the coupon rate depending on market rates and whether the security was purchased at a premium or discount. There are different conventions for calculating YTM for various types of securities.

Page 19 of 20

Ratings Table – Long-Term

<u>Three Highest</u> <u>Rating</u> <u>Categories</u>	<u>S&P</u>	Moody's	<u>Fitch</u>	Definition
	AAA	Aaa	AAA	Highest credit quality
	<u>AA+, AA, AA-</u>	<u>Aa1, Aa2, Aa3</u>	<u>AA+, AA, AA-</u>	Very high credit quality
	<u>A+, A, A-</u>	<u>A1, A2, A3</u>	<u>A+, A, A-</u>	High credit quality
	BBB+, BBB, BBB-	<u>Baa1, Baa2, Baa3</u>	BBB+, BBB, BBB-	Good credit quality
	<u>BB+, BB, BB-</u>	<u>Ba1, Ba2, Ba3</u>	<u>BB+, BB, BB-</u>	Non-investment grade

Ratings Table – Short-Term

<u>Highest Rating</u> <u>Category</u>	<u>S&P</u>	Moody's	Fitch	Definition
	<u>A1+, A1</u>	<u>P1+, P1</u>	<u>F1+, F1</u>	Highest credit quality
	Municipal Commercial	Paper		
	<u>A-1, A-1+, SP-1+, SP-1</u>	P1, MIG1, VMIG1	<u>F1+, F1</u>	Highest credit quality

Commented [WM3]: Added for reference purposes

Page 20 of 20

RESOLUTION NO. 1807

A RESOLUTION Adopting and Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Amended Investment Policy for the Board of Water Commissioners

WHEREAS, the Board of Water Commissioners in compliance with ORS 294.135 adopts its Investment Policy (Policy) annually; and

WHEREAS, the original Policy was adopted at the regular meeting of June 20, 2018 (Resolution #1676) and revised versions adopted at the regular meetings of September 19, 2018 (Resolution #1686), June 19, 2019 (Resolution #1710), June 17, 2020 (Resolution #1738), and May 19, 2021 (Resolution #1769); and

WHEREAS, the current policy has been reviewed in correlation with the Oregon State Treasurer's sample policy, and found to meet the established requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Policy provides guidance on investment decisions and operating principles for the effective management of financial risk, portfolio diversification, and internal controls, and allows for the purchase of investments having a maturity longer than 18 months as allowed by ORS 294.135; and

WHEREAS, the Policy remains in compliance with ORS 294.035, which regulates the investment of public funds by municipal subdivisions, and policy guidelines established by the State of Oregon Short Term Fund Board; and

WHEREAS, the amended is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference; and being fully advised;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MEDFORD, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS, THAT:

SECTION 1. The amended Investment Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit A and by reference made a part hereof, is hereby adopted, and supersedes the Policy adopted by Resolution 1769.

SECTION 2. The General Manager, acting by and on behalf of the Board of Water Commissioners, is authorized and directed to execute said amended Investment Policy, and to sign any other related documents, required in the ordinary course of Commission business, is hereby approved.

PASSED at a regular meeting of the Board of Water Commissioners and signed by me in authentication thereof this 20th day of April 2022.

ATTEST:

Yvette Finstad, Asst. Clerk of the Commission

Bob Strosser, Chair

Medford Water Commission Investment Policy



Resolution #1807

June 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	3
2.	GOVERNING AUTHORITY	3
3.	Scope	3
4.	OBJECTIVES	3
5.	STANDARDS OF CARE	4
6.	TRANSACTION COUNTERPARTIES	5
7.	Administration and Operations	7
8.	AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS	8
9.	INVESTMENT PARAMETERS	10
10.	INVESTMENT OF PROCEEDS FROM DEBT ISSUANCE	12
11.	INVESTMENT OF RESERVE OR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS	13
12.	GUIDELINE MEASUREMENT AND ADHERENCE	13
13.	REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE	13
14.	POLICY MAINTENANCE AND CONSIDERATIONS	14

INVESTMENT POLICY FOR MEDFORD WATER COMMISSION

1. INTRODUCTION

This Investment Policy defines the parameters within which funds are to be invested by the Medford Water Commission. The Medford Water Commission is an autonomous agency of the City of Medford whose purpose is to furnish water for the City of Medford. This policy also formalizes the framework, pursuant to ORS 294.135, for the Medford Water Commission's investment activities to ensure effective and judicious management of funds within the scope of this policy.

These guidelines are intended to be broad enough to allow designated investment staff and investment advisor to function properly within the parameters of responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately safeguard the investment assets.

2. GOVERNING AUTHORITY

The Medford Water Commission's investment program shall be operated in conformance with Oregon Revised Statutes and applicable Federal Law. Specifically, this investment policy is written in conformance with ORS 294.035; 294.040; 294.052, 294.135; 294.145; and 294.810. All funds within the scope of this policy are subject to regulations established by the state of Oregon. Any revisions or extensions of these sections of the ORS shall be assumed to be part of this Investment Policy immediately upon being enacted.

3. SCOPE

This policy applies to activities of the Medford Water Commission with regard to investing the financial assets of operating funds and capital funds. Investments of employees' retirement funds, deferred compensation plans and other funds are not covered by this policy. The amount of funds falling within the scope of this policy over the next three years is expected to range between \$15 million and \$25 million.

4. OBJECTIVES

The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be:

4.1 Preservation of Capital:

Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The goal is to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk.

4.2 Liquidity:

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements. Furthermore, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale markets. A portion of the portfolio also may be placed in the Oregon Short Term Fund which offers next-day liquidity. Where possible and prudent, the portfolio should be structured so that investments mature concurrent with anticipated demands.

4.3 Return:

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into consideration the safety and liquidity needs of the portfolio. Although return consists of both principal return (gains and losses due to market value fluctuations) and income return (yield), this policy discourages active trading and turnover of investments. Investments should generally be held to maturity.

5. STANDARDS OF CARE

5.1 Prudence:

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal liability for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments within a timely fashion as defined in this policy. The "prudent person" standard states:

"Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived."

5.2 Ethics and Conflicts of Interest:

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business. Disclosure shall be made to the Board of Water Commissioners. They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the Medford Water Commission. Officers and employees shall, at all times, comply with the State of Oregon Government Standards and Practices code of ethics set forth in ORS Chapter 244.

5.3 Delegation of Authority and Responsibilities:

Governing Body:

The Board of Water Commissioners will retain ultimate fiduciary responsibility for invested funds. The Board will receive reports pursuant to and with sufficient detail to comply with ORS 294.085 and 294.155.

Delegation of Authority:

Authority to manage investments within the scope of this policy and operate the investment program in accordance with established written procedures and internal controls is granted to the Manager hereinafter referred to as Investment Officer, and derived from the following: ORS 294.035 to 294.053, 294.125 to 294.145, and 294.810.

No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Investment Officer. The Investment Officer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials.

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public trust. No officer or designee may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and supporting procedures.

Investment Committee:

The Board of Water Commissioners will function as the investment committee to provide guidance to the Investment Officer and monitor investment policy compliance.

Investment Advisor:

The Medford Water Commission may engage the services of an external investment manager to assist in the management of the investment portfolio in a manner consistent with this policy. The Investment Advisor may only be granted non-discretionary authority, requiring approval to purchase and sell securities. The advisor may be authorized to transact directly with approved dealer relationships on behalf of the Medford Water Commission.

6. TRANSACTION COUNTERPARTIES

6.1 Broker/Dealers:

The Investment Officer shall determine which broker/dealer firms and registered representatives are authorized for the purposes of investing funds within the scope of this investment policy. A list will be maintained of approved broker/dealer firms and affiliated registered representatives.

The following minimum criteria must be met prior to authorizing investment transactions. The Investment Officer may impose more stringent criteria:

Broker/Dealer firms must meet the following minimum criteria:

- a) Be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
- b) Be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
- c) Provide most recent audited financials
- d) Provide FINRA Focus Report filings

Approved broker/dealer employees who execute transactions with the Medford Water Commission must meet the following minimum criteria:

- a) Be a registered representative with FINRA
- b) Be licensed by the State of Oregon
- c) Certify in writing having read, understood, and agreed to comply with the most current version of this investment policy
- d) Have notified the Medford Water Commission within 30 days of the initiation of any formal investigation or disciplinary action initiated by the federal or state regulators.

The Investment Officer will conduct at least annual reviews of all listed broker/dealers and their respective authorized registered representatives.

Factors considered would include but not be limited to:

- Pending investigations by securities regulators.
- Significant changes in net capital.
- Pending customer arbitration cases.
- Regulatory enforcement actions.

If the Medford Water Commission's investment advisor is contracted to provide securities transactions on behalf of the Medford Water Commission, the advisor's broker/dealer list must be provided to the Custodial Officer for approval. The Custodial Officer can assign the responsibility of broker/dealer due diligence process to the Advisor, and all licensing information on the counterparties will be maintained by the Advisor and available upon request.

The advisor broker/dealer review should include:

- i. FINRA Certification check
- ii. Firm Profile
- iii. Firm History
- iv. Firm Operations
- v. Disclosures of Arbitration Awards, Disciplinary and Regulatory Events
- vi. State Registration Verification
- vii. Financial review of acceptable FINRA capital requirements or letter of credit for clearing settlements.

The advisors must provide the Medford Water Commission with any changes to the list prior to transacting on behalf of the Medford Water Commission.

6.2 Investment Advisors:

An Investment Advisor may be selected by conducting a process of due diligence. The following items are required for the approved Investment Advisors:

- a) The Investment Advisor firm must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or licensed by the state of Oregon.
- b) All Investment Advisor firm representatives conducting investment transactions on behalf of the Medford Water Commission must be registered representatives with FINRA.
- c) All Investment Advisor firm representatives conducting investment transactions on behalf of the Medford Water Commission must be licensed by the state of Oregon.
- d) Contract terms will include that the Investment Advisor comply with the Commissions Investment Policy.
- e) All engaged Investment Advisors must provide notification within 30 days of any formal investigation or disciplinary action initiated by federal or state regulators.

The Investment Officer will conduct at least annual reviews of engaged Investment Advisors to determine their continued eligibility within the guidelines of this policy. The Investment Advisor must notify the Medford Water Commission immediately if any of the following issues arise while serving under a Medford Water Commission contract:

- a) Pending investigations by securities regulators
- b) Significant changes in net capital
- c) Pending customer arbitration cases
- d) Regulatory enforcement actions

The Medford Water Commission will seek investment advisory services through an RFP process.

6.3 Depositories:

All financial institutions who desire to become depositories must be qualified Oregon Depositories pursuant to ORS Chapter 295.

6.3 Competitive Transactions:

- a) The Investment Officer shall obtain and document competitive bid information on all investments purchased or sold in the secondary market. Competitive bids or offers should be obtained, when possible, from at least three separate brokers/financial institutions or through the use of a nationally recognized trading platform.
- b) In the instance of a security for which there is no readily available competitive bid or offering on the same specific issue, then the Investment Officer shall document quotations for comparable or alternative securities.
- c) When purchasing original issue instrumentality securities, no competitive offerings will be required as all dealers in the selling group offer those securities at the same original issue price. However, the Investment Officer shall document quotations on comparable securities.
- d) If an Investment Advisor provides investment management services, the Advisor must retain documentation of competitive pricing execution on each transaction and provide upon request.

7. ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATIONS

7.1 Delivery vs. Payment:

All trades of marketable securities will be executed (cleared and settled) by delivery versus payment to ensure that securities are deposited in the Medford Water Commission's safekeeping institution prior to the release of funds. The Medford Water Commission will have online access through the safekeeping bank for verification of the account holdings and transactions.

7.2 Third party Safekeeping:

Securities will be held by an independent third-party safekeeping institution selected by the Medford Water Commission. Upon request, the safekeeping institution shall make available a copy of its Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) No. 16.

7.3 Internal Controls:

The Investment Officer and the Medford Water Commission are responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure designed to reasonably assure that invested funds are invested within the parameters of this Investment policy and protected from loss, theft or misuse. Specifics for the internal controls shall be documented in writing. The established control structure shall be reviewed and updated periodically by the Investment Officer. The internal controls shall address, at a minimum, the following:

- a) Compliance with Investment Policy
- b) Control Collusion
- c) Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping
- d) Custodial safekeeping
- e) Avoidance of physical delivery of securities whenever possible and address control requirements for physical delivery when necessary
- f) Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members
- g) Confirmation of transaction for investment and wire transfers in written or digitally verifiable electronic form.
- h) Dual authorization of wire transfers and ACH's
- i) Staff training
- j) Review, maintenance, and monitoring of security procedures both manual and automated

7.4 Annual Independent Review:

An external auditor shall provide an annual independent review to assure compliance with Oregon state law and Medford Water Commission policies and procedures.

8. AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS

8.1 Investment Types and Credit Guidelines:

All investments of the Medford Water Commission shall be made in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes: ORS 294.035 (Investment of surplus funds of political subdivisions; approved investments), ORS 294.040 (Restriction on investments under ORS 294.035), ORS 294.135 (Investment maturity dates), ORS 294.145 (Prohibited conduct for Treasurer including not committing to invest funds or sell securities more than 14 business days prior to the anticipated date of settlement), ORS 294.805 to 294.895 (State Investment Pool). Bond proceeds may be invested under guidance of ORS 294.052. If additional types of securities are considered for investment, per Oregon state statute they will not be eligible for investment until this Policy has been amended and adopted by the Board of Water Commissioners.

The following investments are permitted pursuant to ORS 294.035, 294.040, and ORS 294.810. Minimum credit ratings and percentages apply at the time of purchase.

US Treasury Obligations: U.S. Treasury and other government obligations that carry the full faith and credit guarantee of the United States for the timely payment of principal and interest [ORS Section 294.035(3)(a)].

US Agency Obligations: Federal agency and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States government (GSEs) and obligations whose payment is guaranteed by the United States, the agencies and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States Government [ORS Section 294.035(3)(a)].

Municipal Debt: Lawfully issued debt obligations of the States of Oregon, California, Idaho and Washington and political subdivisions of those states if the obligations have a long-term rating on the settlement date of AA- or better by S&P or Aa3 or better by Moody's or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization, or are rated on the settlement date in the highest category for short-term municipal debt by a nationally recognized statistical rating 294.035(3)(b)(c)].

Corporate Indebtedness: Corporate indebtedness subject to a valid registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or issued under the authority of section 3(a)(2) or 3(a)3 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Corporate indebtedness must be rated on the settlement date AA- or better by S&P or Aa3 or better by Moody's or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization [ORS 294.035(3)(i)].

Commercial Paper: Corporate indebtedness subject to a valid registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or issued under the authority of section 3(a)(2) or 3(a)3 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Commercial Paper must be rated A1 by S&P or P1 by Moody's or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Issuer constraints for commercial paper combined with corporate notes will be limited by statute to 5% of market value per issuer [ORS 294.035(3)(i)].

Certificates of Deposit: Certificates of deposit in insured institutions as defined in ORS Section 706.008, in credit unions as defined in ORS Section 723.006, or in federal credit unions, if the institution or credit union maintains a head office or a branch in this state [ORS Section 294.035(3)(d)].

Bank Time Deposits/Savings Accounts: Bank Time Deposits and savings accounts in insured institutions as defined in ORS Section 706.008, in credit unions as defined in ORS Section 723.006, or in federal credit unions, if the institution or credit union maintains a head office or a branch in this state [ORS Section 294.035(3)(d)].

Banker's Acceptance: A short-term credit investment created by a non-financial firm and guaranteed by a qualified financial institution whose short-term letter of credit rating is rated in the highest category without any refinement or gradation by one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. For the purposes of this paragraph, "qualified financial institution" means: (i) A financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon; or (ii) S financial institution that is wholly owned by a financial holding company or a bank holding company that owns a financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon; or (ii) S financial of Oregon. [ORS Section 294.035(3)(h)].

Oregon Short Term Fund: The Oregon Short Term Fund (OSTF), also named the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), is an open-ended, no-load diversified portfolio offered to eligible participants that includes, but is not limited to, any municipality, political subdivision or public corporation of the State of Oregon that by law is made the custodian of, or has control of, any public funds. The LGIP is commingled with the State of Oregon's short-term funds. Oregon's LGIP was created by ORS Chapter 748. The OSTF is allowed to invest up to 50% of the funds in Corporate securities down to a single A rating. The maximum maturity is 3 years, and 50% of the pool must mature or reset within 93 days. The portfolio is managed by Treasury professionals at the State of Oregon. The fund is expected to maintain \$1.00 per every dollar put into the fund, but \$1.00 Net Asset Value is not guaranteed. The Commission's total fund balance held in the pool is limited by statute [ORS Section 294.035(3)(I)].

8.2 Collateralization:

Repurchase Agreements:

- a) ORS 294.035 (3) requires repurchase agreement collateral to be limited in maturity to three years and priced according to percentages prescribed by written policy of the Oregon Investment Council or the Oregon Short Term Fund Board.
- b) ORS 294.135 (3) limits the maximum term of any repurchase agreement to 90 days.
- c) The following margins are required:
 - US Treasury Securities: 102%
 - US Agency Discount and Coupon Securities: 102%
 - Mortgage Backed and Other*: 103%
 *Limited to those securities described in ORS 294.035(1)

8.3 Prohibited Investments:

- 8.3.1 US Agency Mortgage-backed Securities: US agency mortgage-backed securities such as those securities by FNMA and FHLMC are not allowed.
- 8.3.2 Private Placement or "144A" Securities: Private placement or "144A" securities are not allowed. This includes commercial paper issued under section 4(2)144A (also known as "4(2)A") of the Securities Act of 1933.
- 8.3.3 Securities Lending and Reverse Repurchase Agreements: The Medford Water Commission shall not lend securities nor directly participate in a securities lending or reverse repurchase program.

9. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS

9.1 Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt. Credit risk will be mitigated by the following guidelines:

- a. Diversification: It is the policy of the Medford Water Commission to diversify its investments. Where appropriate, exposures will be limited by security type, maturity, issuance, issuer and security type. Allowed security types and investment exposure limitations are detailed in the table below.
- b. Investment Credit Ratings: Investments must have a rating from at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, such as: Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's or Fitch Ratings Service. Ratings used to apply the guidelines below should be investment level ratings and not issuer level ratings.
- c. Restriction on Municipal Issuers with Prior Default History: Per ORS 294.040, the bonds of issuers listed in ORS 294.035 (3)(a) to (c) may be purchased only if there has been no default in payment of either the principal of or the interest on the obligations of the issuing Commission, port, school district or city, for a period of twenty years next preceding the date of the investment.
Exposure Constraints:

Issue Type	Maximum % Holdings	Maximum % per Issuer	Ratings S&P, Moody's, or Equivalent NRSRO	Maximum Maturity
US Treasury Obligations	100%	None	N/A	5.25 years
US Agency Obligations	100%	35%	N/A	5.25 years
Municipal Bonds (OR, CA, ID, WA)	25%	10%	AA- / Aa3 Short Term*	5.25 years
Corporate Bonds	- 35%**	5%***	AA- / Aa3	5.25 years
Commercial Paper	- 5576	5%	A1 / P1	270 days
Certificates of Deposit	20%	5%	Oregon Public Depository	5.25 years
Bank Time Deposits/Savings Accounts	50%	25%	Oregon Public Depository	n/a
Banker's Acceptance	25%	5%	A1 / P1 AA- / Aa3 Underlying	180 days
Oregon Short Term Fund	Maximum allowed per ORS 294.810	None	N/A	N/A

*Short Term Ratings: Moody's - P1/MIG1/VMIG1. S&P - A-1/SP-1, Fitch F1

**35% maximum combined corporate and commercial paper per ORS.

***Issuer constraints apply to the combined issues in corporate and commercial paper holdings.

9.2 Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that there that there may not be enough cash balances available to provide for demand payments. The following strategies will be employed to mitigate liquidity risks:

- a. The amount of at least 10% of funds available for investing will be invested in the Oregon Short Term Fund, with a qualified depository institution, or investments maturing in less than 30 days to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.
- b. Reserve or Capital Improvement Project monies may be invested in securities exceeding the maximum term if the maturities of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds.
- c. Operating funds in excess of liquidity requirements will be invested subject to the Total Portfolio Maturity Constraints following. Portfolio investment maturities will be limited as follows:

Total Portfolio Maturity Constraints:

Maturity Constraints	Minimum % of Total Portfolio
Under 30 days	10%
Under 1 year	25%
Under 5.25 years	100%
Maturity Constraints	Maximum of Total Portfolio in Years
Weighted Average Maturity	2.50
Security Structure Constraint	Maximum % of Total Portfolio
Callable Agency Securities	25%

9.3 Interest Rate Risk:

Longer-term investments have the potential to achieve higher returns but are also likely to exhibit higher market value volatility due to the changes in the general level of interest rates over the life of the investment. Interest rate risk will be mitigated by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow purposes. The following strategies will be employed to control and mitigate adverse changes in the market value of the portfolio due to changes in interest rates:

- a) Where feasible and prudent, investment maturities should be matched with expected cash outflows to mitigate market risk.
- b) Investment policy is to invest in securities that are held to maturity. Securities may be sold before maturity in furtherance of the General Objectives of this policy.
- c) To the extent feasible, investment maturities not matched with cash outflows, including liquidity investments under one year, should be staggered to mitigate re-investment risk.
- d) No commitments to buy or sell securities may be made more than 14 days prior to the anticipated settlement date or receive a fee other than interest for future deliveries.
- e) The maximum percent of callable securities in the portfolio shall be 25%;
- f) The maximum stated final maturity of individual securities in the portfolio shall be five and one quarter (5.25) years, except as otherwise stated in this policy.
- g) The maximum portfolio average maturity (measured with stated final maturity) shall be 2.5 years.

10. INVESTMENT OF PROCEEDS FROM DEBT ISSUANCE

Investments of bond proceeds are restricted under bond covenants that may be more restrictive than the investment parameters included in this policy. Bond proceeds shall be invested in accordance with the parameters of this policy and the applicable bond covenants and tax laws.

Funds from bond proceeds and amounts held in a bond payment reserve or proceeds fund may be invested pursuant to ORS 294.052. Investments of bond proceeds are typically not invested for resale and are maturity matched with outflows. Consequently, funds within the scope of ORS 294.052 are not subject to this policy's liquidity risk constraints within section 9.2.

Information will be maintained for arbitrage rebate calculations.

11. INVESTMENT OF RESERVE OR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

Pursuant to ORS 294.135(1)(b), Reserve or Capital Improvement project monies may be invested in securities exceeding five and a quarter (5.25) years when the funds in question are being accumulated for an anticipated use that will occur more than 18 months after the funds are invested. With approval of the Board of Water Commissioners, the maturity of the investment or investments made with the funds may occur when the funds are expected to be used.

12. GUIDELINE MEASUREMENT AND ADHERENCE

12.1 Guideline Measurements:

Guideline measurements will use market value investments.

12.2 Guideline compliance:

- a. If the portfolio falls outside of compliance with adopted investment policy guidelines or is being managed inconsistently with this policy, the Investment Officer shall bring the portfolio back into compliance in a prudent manner and as soon as prudently feasible. All violations and recommended actions to bring back into compliance will be reported to the Board of Water Commissioners at the next scheduled meeting.
- b. Due to fluctuations in the aggregate surplus funds balance, maximum percentages for a particular issuer or investment type may be exceeded at a point in time. Securities need not be liquidated to realign the portfolio; however, consideration should be given to this matter when future purchases are made to ensure that appropriate diversification is maintained. Any violations due to aggregate balances will be reported to the Board of Water Commissioners at the next scheduled meeting.
- c. If the credit rating of a properly acquired security is downgraded below the minimum rating level for a new investment in that security, the Investment Officer and Advisor shall evaluate the downgrade on a case-by-case basis in order to determine if the security should be held or sold. The Investment Officer and Advisor will notify the Board of Water Commissioners of the downgrade and their recommended action at the next scheduled meeting.

13. REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE

13.1 Compliance:

The Investment Officer shall prepare a report at least quarterly that allows the Medford Water Commission to ascertain whether investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the investment policy. The report will include, at a minimum, the following:

- a. A listing of all investments held during the reporting period showing: par/face value, accounting book value, market value, type of investment, issuer, credit ratings, yield to maturity.
- b. Average maturity of the portfolio at period-end.
- c. Maturity distribution of the portfolio at period-end.
- d. Average weighted yield to maturity and yield to worst if callable of portfolio.
- e. Distribution by type of investment.
- f. Transactions since last report.
- g. Distribution of transactions among financial counterparties such as broker/dealers.
- h. Violations of portfolio guidelines or non-compliance issues that occurred during the prior period or that are outstanding. This report should also note actions (taken or planned) to bring the portfolio back into compliance.

13.2 Performance Standards and Evaluation:

The investment officer shall document an investment return comparison of the investment portfolio to a comparative market index. These returns will be provided to the Medford Water Commission at least annually.

When comparing annual performance, all fees and expenses involved with managing the portfolio shall be included in the computation of the portfolio's rate of return.

13.3 Mark to Market:

The market value of the portfolio shall be calculated at least monthly and a statement of the market value of the portfolio shall be reviewed monthly by the Investment Officer.

13.4 Audits:

Management shall establish an annual process of independent review by the external auditor to assure compliance with internal controls. Such audit will include tests deemed appropriate by the auditor.

14. POLICY MAINTENANCE AND CONSIDERATIONS

14.1 Review:

The investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure its consistency and effectiveness with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and return and its compliance with current law. The annual review should also serve as a venue to suggest policies and improvements to the investment program and shall include an investment plan for the coming year.

14.2 Policy Adoption and Amendments:

This investment policy and any modifications to this policy must be adopted by resolution of the Medford Water Commission.

Regardless of whether this policy is submitted to the OSTF Board for comment, this policy shall be re-submitted not less than annually to the Board of Water Commissioners for approval.

15. GLOSSARY OF KEY INVESTMENT TERMS

Accrued Interest. Interest earned but which has not yet been paid or received.

Agency. See "Federal Agency Securities."

Bankers' Acceptance (BA's). A draft or bill of exchange drawn upon and accepted by a bank. Frequently used to finance shipping of international goods. Used as a short-term credit instrument, bankers' acceptances are traded at a discount from face value as a money market instrument in the secondary market on the basis of the credit quality of the guaranteeing bank.

Basis Points. A basis point is a unit of measure used in finance to describe the percentage change in the value or rate of a financial instrument. One basis point is equivalent to 0.01% (1/100th of a percent) or 0.0001 in decimal form. In most cases, it refers to changes in interest rates and bond yields.

Benchmark. A market index used as a comparative basis for measuring the performance of an investment portfolio. A performance benchmark should represent a close correlation to investment guidelines, risk tolerance and duration of the actual portfolio's investments.

Broker/Dealer. A person or firm transacting securities business with customers. A "broker" acts as an agent between buyers and sellers and receives a commission for these services. A "dealer" buys and sells financial assets from its own portfolio. A dealer takes risk by owning inventory of securities, whereas a broker merely matches up buyers and sellers. See also "Primary Dealer."

Certificate of Deposit (CD). Bank obligation issued by a financial institution generally offering a fixed rate of return (coupon) for a specified period of time (maturity).

Collateral. Investment securities or other property that a borrower pledges to secure repayment of a loan, secure deposits of public monies, or provide security for a repurchase agreement.

Commercial Paper. Short term unsecured promissory note issued by a company or financial institution. Issued at a discount and matures for par or face value. Usually a maximum maturity of 270 days, and given a short-term debt rating by one or more NRSROs

Corporate Note. A debt instrument issued by a corporation with a maturity of greater than one year and less than ten years.

Counterparty. The other party in a two-party financial transaction. "Counterparty risk" refers to the risk that the other party to a transaction will fail in its related obligations. For example, the bank or broker/dealer in a repurchase agreement.

Current Yield. Annual rate of return on a bond based on its price. Calculated as (coupon rate / price), but does <u>not</u> accurately reflect a bond's true yield level.

Custody. Safekeeping services offered by a bank, financial institution or trust company, referred to as the "custodian." Service normally includes the holding and reporting of the customer's securities, the collection and disbursement of income, securities settlement and market values.

Delivery Versus Payment (DVP). Settlement procedure in which securities are delivered versus payment of cash, but only after cash has been received. Most security transactions, including those through the Fed Securities Wire system and DTC, are done DVP as a protection for both the buyer and seller of securities.

Depository Trust Company (DTC). A firm through which members can use a computer to arrange for securities to be delivered to other members without physical delivery of certificates. A member of the Federal Reserve System and owned mostly by the New York Stock Exchange, the Depository Trust Company uses computerized debit and credit entries. Most corporate securities, commercial paper, CDs and BAs clear through DTC.

Discount Notes. Unsecured general obligations issued by Federal Agencies at a discount. Discount notes mature at par and can range in maturity from overnight to one year. Discount Notes typically have very large primary (new issue) and secondary markets.

Diversification. Dividing investment funds among a variety of security types, maturities, industries and issuers offering potentially independent returns.

Federal Agency Security. A debt instrument issued by one of the federal agencies. Federal agencies are considered second in credit quality and liquidity only to U.S. Treasuries.

Federal Agency. Government sponsored/owned entity created by the U.S. Congress, generally for the purpose of acting as a financial intermediary by borrowing in the marketplace and directing proceeds to specific areas of the economy considered to otherwise have restricted access to credit markets.

Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation (FFCB). A Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) system that is a network of cooperatively owned lending institutions that provide credit services to farmers, agricultural cooperatives and rural utilities. The FFCBs act as financial intermediaries that borrow money in the capital markets and use the proceeds to make loans and provide other assistance to farmers and farm-affiliated businesses. Consists of the consolidated operations of the Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, and Federal Land Banks. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. FFCB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and agricultural industry. Also issues notes under its "designated note" program.

Federal Home Loan Bank System (FHLB). A Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) system, consisting of wholesale banks (currently twelve district banks) owned by their member banks, which provides correspondent banking services and credit to various financial institutions, financed by the issuance of securities. The principal purpose of the FHLB is to add liquidity to the mortgage markets. Although FHLB does not directly fund mortgages, it provides a stable supply of credit to thrift institutions that make new mortgage loans. FHLB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. Also issues notes under its "global note" and "TAP" programs.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or "Freddie Mac"). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides stability and assistance to the secondary market for home mortgages by purchasing first mortgages and participation interests financed by the sale of debt and guaranteed mortgage backed securities. FHLMC debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities and MBS. Also issues notes under its "reference note" program.

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or "Fannie Mae"). One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides liquidity to the residential mortgage market by purchasing mortgage loans from lenders, financed by the issuance of debt securities and MBS (pools of mortgages packaged together as a security). FNMA debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities and MBS. Also issues notes under its "benchmark note" program.

Federal Reserve Bank. One of the 12 distinct banks of the Federal Reserve System.

Federal Reserve System (the Fed). The independent central bank system of the United States that establishes and conducts the nation's monetary policy. This is accomplished in three major ways: (1) raising or lowering bank reserve requirements, (2) raising or lowering the target Fed Funds Rate and Discount Rate, and (3) in open market operations by buying and selling government securities. The Federal Reserve System is made up of twelve Federal Reserve District Banks, their branches, and many national and state banks throughout the nation. It is

headed by the seven member Board of Governors known as the "Federal Reserve Board" and headed by its Chairman.

Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE). Privately owned entity subject to federal regulation and supervision, created by the U.S. Congress to reduce the cost of capital for certain borrowing sectors of the economy such as students, farmers, and homeowners. GSEs carry the implicit backing of the U.S. Government, but they are not direct obligations of the U.S. Government. For this reason, these securities will offer a yield premium over Treasuries. Some consider GSEs to be stealth recipients of corporate welfare. Examples of GSEs include: FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA and SLMA.

Government Sponsored Enterprise Security. A security issued by a Government Sponsored Enterprise. Considered Federal Agency Securities.

Index. A compilation of statistical data that tracks changes in the economy or in financial markets. **Investment Advisor.** A company that provides professional advice managing portfolios, investment recommendations and/or research in exchange for a management fee.

Liquidity. Relative ease of converting an asset into cash without significant loss of value. Also, a relative measure of cash and near-cash items in a portfolio of assets. Also, a term describing the marketability of a money market security correlating to the narrowness of the spread between the bid and ask prices.

Market Value. The fair market value of a security or commodity. The price at which a willing buyer and seller would pay for a security.

Maturity Date. Date on which principal payment of a financial obligation is to be paid.

Municipal Obligations. A debt instrument issued by a state or local government unit or public agency. The vast majority of municipals are exempt from state and federal income tax, although some non-qualified issues are taxable.

NRSRO. A "Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization." A designated rating organization that the SEC has deemed a strong national presence in the U.S. NRSROs provide credit ratings on corporate and bank debt issues. Only ratings of a NRSRO may be used for the regulatory purposes of rating such as Moody's, S&P, Fitch and Duff & Phelps.

Par Value. Face value, stated value or maturity value of a security.

Principal. Face value of a financial instrument on which interest accrues. May be less than par value if some principal has been repaid or retired. For a transaction, principal is par value times price and includes any premium or discount.

Prudent Person Standard. Standard that requires that when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee will act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the agency. More stringent than the "prudent person" standard as it implies a level of knowledge commensurate with the responsibility at hand.

Rate of Return. Amount of income received from an investment, expressed as a percentage of the amount invested.

Repurchase Agreement (Repo). A short-term investment vehicle where an investor agrees to buy securities from a counterparty and simultaneously agrees to resell the securities back to the counterparty at an agreed upon time and for an agreed upon price. The difference between the purchase price and the sale price represents interest earned on the agreement. In effect, it represents a collateralized loan to the investor, where the securities are the collateral. Can be DVP, where securities are delivered to the investor's custodial bank, or "tri-party" where the securities are delivered to a third party intermediary. Any type of security can be used as "collateral," but only some types provide the investor with special bankruptcy protection under the

law. Repos should be undertaken only when an appropriate approved master repurchase agreement is in place.

State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool. The LGIP is organized pursuant to ORS 294.805 through 294.895. Participation in the Pool will not exceed the maximum limit annually set by ORS 294.810.

Safekeeping. Service offered for a fee, usually by financial institutions, for the holding of securities and other valuables. Safekeeping is a component of custody services.

Total Return. Investment performance measured over a period of time that includes coupon interest, interest on interest, and both realized and unrealized gains or losses. Total return includes, therefore, any market value appreciation/depreciation on investments held at period end.

Treasuries. Collective term used to describe debt instruments backed by the U.S. Government and issued through the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Includes Treasury bills, Treasury notes, and Treasury bonds. Also a benchmark term used as a basis by which the yields of non-Treasury securities are compared (e.g., "trading at 50 basis points over Treasuries").

Treasury Bills (T-Bills). Short-term direct obligations of the United States Government issued with an original term of one year or less. Treasury bills are sold at a discount from face value and do not pay interest before maturity. The difference between the purchase price of the bill and the maturity value is the interest earned on the bill. Currently, the U.S. Treasury issues 4-week, 13-week and 26-week T-Bills.

Treasury Bonds. Long-term interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. Government and issued with maturities of ten years and longer by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. The Treasury stopped issuing Treasury Bonds in August 2001.

Treasury Notes. Intermediate interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. Government and issued with maturities ranging from one to ten years by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. The Treasury currently issues 2-year, 5-year and 10-year Treasury Notes.

Yield to Maturity (YTM). Calculated return on an investment, assuming all cash flows from the security are reinvested at the same original yield. Can be higher or lower than the coupon rate depending on market rates and whether the security was purchased at a premium or discount. There are different conventions for calculating YTM for various types of securities.

st	S&P	Moody's	Fitch	Definition	
ree Highest Rating ategories	AAA	Aaa	AAA	Highest credit quality	
ree H Rati ateg	AA+, AA, AA-	Aa1, Aa2, Aa3	AA+, AA, AA-	Very high credit quality	
C I	A+, A, A-	A1, A2, A3	A+, A, A-	High credit quality	
	BBB+, BBB, BBB-	Baa1, Baa2, Baa3	BBB+, BBB, BBB-	Good credit quality	
	BB+, BB, BB-	Ba1, Ba2, Ba3	BB+, BB, BB-	Non-investment grade	

Ratings Table – Long-Term

Ratings Table – Short-Term

бu	S&P	Moody's	Fitch	Definition
Rating gory	A1+, A1	P1+, P1	F1+, F1	Highest credit quality
Highest F Categ	Municipal Commercial Paper			
드이	•			



Memorandum

то:	Commissioners Bob Strosser, Michael Smith, Daniel Bunn, John Dailey, and
	Jason Anderson
FROM:	Brad Taylor
DATE:	Thursday, April 14, 2022
SUBJECT:	Item 6 – Resolution 1808, Adopting Revisions to "Regulations Governing Water
	Service", effective April 29, 2022
OBJECTIVE:	Board Approval

lssue

Revision of Medford Water's "Regulations Governing Water Service" document is necessary for clarification of policy on the sale of Bulk Surplus Water from the Water Filling Station at 821 N. Columbus Ave., Medford, Oregon.

Discussion

Modifications to Section 10.5 and 10.6 of the Regulations Governing Water Service as shown in the attached redlined document along with adding a new Section 18.3.

Financial Impact

N/A

Requested Board Action

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 1808, adopting the revisions to "Regulations Governing Water Service", effective April 29th, 2022.

10.5 Temporary Service from Fire Hydrants

Commission may allow fire hydrants to be used on a "temporary" basis by contractors for filling of tank trucks on a day-to-day basis upon making formal application. Water taken from a fire hydrant is Non-Potable Water. It is important to remember that fire hydrants are an essential part of the community's fire protection program and utilization of them for temporary service can delay or hamper their effectiveness. Utilization of fire hydrants for temporary service shall be limited to ninety (90) days. Extension of this period may be granted by request.

No hydrant may be utilized without a Commission installed backflow and control device. During peak construction periods, a shortage of devices may occur, and allocation will be on a first come, first serve basis. Commission reserves the right to limit one device per company.

Charges for fire hydrant temporary service shall be at Commission's regularly established schedule of charges and rates. Such charges include Commission's cost of furnishing, installing, maintenance, and subsequent removal of the device and the cost of water used. Such charges are based on the use of a single hydrant and moving of the equipment shall constitute a separate charge.

Persons responsible for unauthorized use of fire hydrants without Commission's flow control and backflow protection equipment shall be charged a tampering and inspection fee and for water used in accordance with Commission's regularly scheduled charges and rates.

Temporary service will be provided from November 1 through March 1 if the Applicant provides adequate protection against freezing weather conditions. The temporary fire hydrant connection must be protected, to Commission's satisfaction, within two (2) hours of installation. If the device is not adequately protected, within two (2) hours, the device will be removed, and the Applicant's installation charge forfeited. The contractor shall be responsible for the cost of repair of any device damaged by freezing or neglect.

Contractors performing work within the city limits of the City of Medford and existing surrounding water districts or service area that are not master metered may be allowed to utilize temporary service from a fire hydrant. The water taken from a fire hydrant may not be used or transported to other areas outside of our service boundary. Water from the temporary service is for the exclusive use of the contractor or their designated subcontractor for the express project identified on the application for service. Water for outside use can only be obtained at a dispenser at the Water Commission's service center at Columbus and McAndrews. A water dispenser is located at 724 Antelope Road in White City at the site of the Jackson County Public Works shops.

10.6 Bulk Water Sales from Fire Hydrant

Bulk water sales from fire hydrants are not allowed. Bulk water can be purchased at a water dispenser station 821 N. Columbus Ave., Medford, and also at the Jackson County Public Works shop located at 724 Antelope Road in White City.

SECTION 18 SURPLUS WATER

18.1 Use of Surplus Water

Water disposed of or sold outside of the boundaries of the City of Medford shall only be surplus water.

18.2 Rights to Surplus Water

Customers' rights of use of surplus water of Commission shall not be prior or superior to the rights to the use granted to others by Commission and shall at all times be subject to the *Regulations* of Commission. Limiting or restricting the supply of water to any Customer is in the sole discretion of

Commission, when deemed advisable or necessary for the distribution and use of the surplus water of the City of Medford, taking into consideration the Commission water system, the condition of the water system, the surplus water available, requirements and use, and such other conditions as Commission shall deem pertinent.

18.3 Surplus Bulk Water Sales

Surplus Bulk Water is available from Medford Water at 821 N. Columbus Ave., Medford, Oregon. Maximum weekly limit is 3,500 gallons. -Maximum water volume per month is 15,500 gallons. Water in larger volumes are available at the Jackson County Public Works Facility at 724 Antelope Road, White City, Oregon upon set up of account with Jackson County. Medford Water maintains water sales records by customer including license plate of the vehicle used to haul the water. Only one account per vehicle license is allowed. Once maximum volume is reached water will not be dispensed until new time period begins. Bulk water is used and hauled at your own risk. Rights to purchase water will be rescinded if terms and conditions are not followed. Refer to Exhibit E (Schedule 11) for rate information.

RESOLUTION NO. 1808

A RESOLUTION Adopting Revisions to Sections 10.5, 10.6, and 18.3 of the "Regulations Governing Water Service", effective April 29, 2022

WHEREAS, modifications to exhibits of Medford Water Commission's ("Medford Water's") "Regulations Governing Water Service" are regularly considered by the Board of Water Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the addition and amendments of specific sections are also periodically considered; and

WHEREAS, revisions to Sections 10.5 and 10.6 as shown in the attached Exhibit A, and the addition of a new Section 18.3, are necessary for clarification of policy and alignment with modern practices; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Water Commissioners approved changes to the Commission's "Regulations Governing Water Service" at the regular meeting of April 20, 2022;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MEDFORD, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS, THAT:

SECTION 1: Sections 10.5 and 10.6 of the "Regulations Governing Water Service" are hereby revised as set forth in Exhibit A, to become effective from and after the 29th day of April 2022.

SECTION 2: Section 18.3 of the "Regulations Governing Water Service" is hereby added as set forth in Exhibit A, to become effective from and after the 29th day of April 2022.

PASSED at the regular meeting of the Board of Water Commissioners and signed by me in authentication thereof this 20th day of April 2022.

ATTEST:

Yvette Finstad, Asst. Clerk of the Commission

Bob Strosser, Chair

10.5 <u>Temporary Service from Fire Hydrants</u>

Commission may allow fire hydrants to be used on a "temporary" basis by contractors for filling of tank trucks on a day-to-day basis upon making formal application. Water taken from a fire hydrant is Non-Potable Water. It is important to remember that fire hydrants are an essential part of the community's fire protection program and utilization of them for temporary service can delay or hamper their effectiveness. Utilization of fire hydrants for temporary service shall be limited to ninety (90) days. Extension of this period may be granted by request.

No hydrant may be utilized without a Commission installed backflow and control device. During peak construction periods, a shortage of devices may occur, and allocation will be on a first come, first serve basis. Commission reserves the right to limit one device per company.

Charges for fire hydrant temporary service shall be at Commission's regularly established schedule of charges and rates. Such charges include Commission's cost of furnishing, installing, maintenance, and subsequent removal of the device and the cost of water used. Such charges are based on the use of a single hydrant and moving of the equipment shall constitute a separate charge.

Persons responsible for unauthorized use of fire hydrants without Commission's flow control and backflow protection equipment shall be charged a tampering and inspection fee and for water used in accordance with Commission's regularly scheduled charges and rates.

Temporary service will be provided from November 1 through March 1 if the Applicant provides adequate protection against freezing weather conditions. The temporary fire hydrant connection must be protected, to Commission's satisfaction, within two (2) hours of installation. If the device is not adequately protected, within two (2) hours, the device will be removed, and the Applicant's installation charge forfeited. The contractor shall be responsible for the cost of repair of any device damaged by freezing or neglect.

Contractors performing work within the city limits of the City of Medford and existing surrounding water districts or service area that are not master metered may be allowed to utilize temporary service from a fire hydrant. The water taken from a fire hydrant may not be used or transported to other areas outside of our service boundary. Water from the temporary service is for the exclusive use of the contractor or their designated subcontractor for the express project identified on the application for service.

10.6 Bulk Water Sales from Fire Hydrant

Bulk water sales from fire hydrants are not allowed. Bulk water can be purchased at 821 N. Columbus Ave., Medford, and also at the Jackson County Public Works shop located at 724 Antelope Road in White City.

SECTION 18 SURPLUS WATER

18.1 Use of Surplus Water

Water disposed of or sold outside of the boundaries of the City of Medford shall only be surplus water.

18.2 Rights to Surplus Water

Customers' rights of use of surplus water of Commission shall not be prior or superior to the rights to the use granted to others by Commission and shall at all times be subject to the *Regulations* of Commission. Limiting or restricting the supply of water to any Customer is in the sole discretion of Commission, when deemed advisable or necessary for the distribution and use of the surplus water of the City of Medford, taking into consideration the Commission water system, the condition of the water system, the surplus water available, requirements and use, and such other conditions as Commission

shall deem pertinent.

18.3 Surplus Bulk Water Sales

Surplus Bulk Water is available from Medford Water at 821 N. Columbus Ave., Medford, Oregon. Maximum weekly limit is 3,500 gallons. Maximum water volume per month is 15,500 gallons. Water in larger volumes are available at the Jackson County Public Works Facility at 724 Antelope Road, White City, Oregon upon set up of account with Jackson County. Medford Water maintains water sales records by customer including license plate of the vehicle used to haul the water. Only one account per vehicle license is allowed. Once maximum volume is reached water will not be dispensed until new time period begins. Bulk water is used and hauled at your own risk. Rights to purchase water will be rescinded if terms and conditions are not followed. Refer to Exhibit E (Schedule 11) for rate information.



Memorandum

то:	Commissioners Bob Strosser, Michael Smith, John Dailey, Jason Anderson, and Daniel Bunn
FROM:	Brian Runyen, PE, Engineering Manager Julie Smitherman, Water Efficiency & Customer Service Manager
DATE:	Wednesday, April 20, 2022
SUBJECT:	Item 7 – Resolution 1809, Authorizing the General Manager to execute emergency metered water service agreements with five golf courses
OBJECTIVE:	Board Approval

Issue

Staff recommends entering into updated Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with the three golf courses we have active agreements with and new Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with two additional golf courses who have requested service.

Discussion

Medford Water currently has Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with the following golf courses: Rogue Valley Country Club, Quail Point, and Stewart Meadows. Medford Water entered into a temporary Emergency Metered Water Service Agreement with Bear Creek Golf Course in 2021, which has since expired. Bear Creek and Centennial Golf Courses have since both requested service agreements for their facilities.

Conservation staff have worked with the golf courses to create individualized water conservation plans for each golf course, consisting of efficiency efforts and water conservation measures to be implemented, as wall as operations procedures including weekly meter readings, pumping schedules, and watering times. Maximum per day usage of water has been calculated in consultation with Conservation staff.

This resolution would authorize establishment of new Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with all the golf courses, replacing any active agreements. The conservation requirements and updated maximum daily allowances discussed previously are incorporated. Water is to be supplied at a flow rate and time schedule determined by Medford Water, which will minimize the impacts to existing customers. Furthermore, the agreements specify that water will only be supplied if there is a surplus and such supply will not be detrimental to our existing customers, and rights are reserved to reduce or stop metered service at any time if deemed necessary for any reason. Water usage will remain charged at the "Intermittent User" rate. The agreements continue to have 60-day notice termination clauses.

All of this gives Medford Water the flexibility to provide service to the golf courses to the extent that other customers or our operations are not negatively impacted.

Financial Impact

Medford Water will be able to sell metered surplus water to these golf courses at a flow rate and time scheduled determined by our organization while minimizing the impacts to existing customers.

Requested Board Action

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 1809, authorizing the General Manager to execute Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with Bear Creek Golf Course, Centennial Golf Course, Quail Point Golf Course, Rogue Valley Country Club Golf Course, and Stewart Meadows Golf Course.

RESOLUTION NO. 1809

A RESOLUTION Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with Stewart Meadows Golf Course, Rogue Valley Country Club, Quail Point Golf Course, Bear Creek Golf Course, and Centennial Golf Course, and Repealing All Previous Agreements

WHEREAS, during emergency situations, the above-referenced golf courses may have need of surplus water from Medford Water Commission's system; and

WHEREAS, water will only be supplied to the golf courses if there is a surplus and such supply will not be detrimental to the commissions customers; and

WHEREAS, the referenced golf courses have an appropriate meter installed with the required backflow prevention device; and

WHEREAS, the referenced golf courses have submitted a water conservation and management plan to include water efficiency measures and operational plan; and

WHEREAS, Medford Water Commission desires to have an accurate record of agreement conditions in written form;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MEDFORD, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS:

That the General Manager of Medford Water Commission is hereby authorized to sign Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements with the above-referenced golf courses, by and between the City of Medford by and through its Board of Water Commissioners and shall be as set forth in the attached form "Exhibit A", attached hereto and by reference made a part hereof, and that all prior agreements for said service are hereby repealed (superseding Resolutions 764 and 1785).

PASSED by the Board of Water Commissioners of the City of Medford, Oregon and signed by me in authentication of its passage this 20th day of April 2022.

ATTEST:

Yvette Finstad, Asst. Clerk of the Commission

Bob Strosser, Chair

Emergency Metered Water Service Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the City of Medford, by and through its Board of Water Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the COMMISSION, and the BEAR CREEK GOLF COURSE, hereinafter referred to as the GOLF COURSE.

Witnesseth:

WHEREAS, there is an existing dedicated service and meter with an air gap which could be used in case of an emergency to supply water to the GOLF COURSE; and

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION may have some surplus water during such an emergency in the service area supplying this service;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, it is mutually agreed as follows:

- A. The COMMISSION will allow up to 100,000 gallons of water to be supplied per day to the GOLF COURSE at a flow rate and time schedule determined by the COMMISSION which will minimize the impacts to existing customers.
- B. Water will only be supplied to the GOLF COURSE if there is a surplus and such supply will not be detrimental to the COMMISSION'S existing customers. The COMMISSION reserves the right to reduce or stop metered service at any time if deemed necessary for any reason.
- C. The GOLF COURSE will be subject to the same rules of service as other customers within the system. This service shall be classified as an "Intermittent User" and the water rates and monthly meter charges will apply.
- D. The emergency water service use will only be activated or turned on by the COMMISSION upon 24 hours notification. Otherwise, the service will remain locked off by the COMMISSION.
- E. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for all costs associated with installing a water service to provide requested flows
- F. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for installing COMMISSION approved backflow device
- G. The GOLF COURSE will submit a water conservation and management plan to include water efficiency measures and operational plan.
- H. It may be terminated upon sixty (60) days written notice by either party sent to the normal place of business.
- I. THIS AGREEMENT shall supersede and replace all prior Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements between the COMMISSION and the GOLF COURSE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as to the last date written below.

Date

General Manager, Medford Water Commission

Date

Bear Creek Golf Course

Emergency Metered Water Service Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the City of Medford, by and through its Board of Water Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the COMMISSION, and the CENTENNIAL GOLF COURSE, hereinafter referred to as the GOLF COURSE.

Witnesseth:

WHEREAS, there is an existing dedicated service and meter with an air gap which could be used in case of an emergency to supply water to the GOLF COURSE; and

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION may have some surplus water during such an emergency in the service area supplying this service;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, it is mutually agreed as follows:

- A. The COMMISSION will allow up to 400,000 gallons of water to be supplied per day to the GOLF COURSE at a flow rate and time schedule determined by the COMMISSION which will minimize the impacts to existing customers.
- B. Water will only be supplied to the GOLF COURSE if there is a surplus and such supply will not be detrimental to the COMMISSIONS existing customers. The COMMISSION reserves the right to reduce or stop metered service at any time if deemed necessary for any reason.
- C. The GOLF COURSE will be subject to the same rules of service as other customers within the system. This service shall be classified as an "Intermittent User" and the water rates and monthly meter charges will apply.
- D. The emergency water service use will only be activated or turned on by the COMMISSION upon 24 hours notification. Otherwise, the service will remain locked off by the COMMISSION.
- E. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for all costs associated with installing a water service to provide requested flows
- F. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for installing COMMISSION approved backflow device
- G. The GOLF COURSE will submit a water conservation and management plan to include water efficiency measures and operational plan.
- H. It may be terminated upon sixty (60) days written notice by either party sent to the normal place of business.
- I. THIS AGREEMENT shall supersede and replace all prior Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements between the COMMISSION and the GOLF COURSE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as to the last date written below.

Date

General Manager, Medford Water Commission

Date

Centennial Golf Course

Emergency Metered Water Service Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the City of Medford, by and through its Board of Water Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the COMMISSION, and the QUAIL POINT GOLF COURSE, hereinafter referred to as the GOLF COURSE.

Witnesseth:

WHEREAS, there is an existing dedicated service and meter with an air gap which could be used in case of an emergency to supply water to the GOLF COURSE; and

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION may have some surplus water during such an emergency in the service area supplying this service;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, it is mutually agreed as follows:

- A. The COMMISSION will allow up to 250,000 gallons of water to be supplied per day to the GOLF COURSE at a flow rate and time schedule determined by the COMMISSION which will minimize the impacts to existing customers.
- B. Water will only be supplied to the GOLF COURSE if there is a surplus and such supply will not be detrimental to the COMMISSION'S existing customers. The COMMISSION reserves the right to reduce or stop metered service at any time if deemed necessary for any reason.
- C. The GOLF COURSE will be subject to the same rules of service as other customers within the system. This service shall be classified as an "Intermittent User" and the water rates and monthly meter charges will apply.
- D. The emergency water service use will only be activated or turned on by the COMMISSION upon 24 hours notification. Otherwise, the service will remain locked off by the COMMISSION.
- E. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for all costs associated with installing a water service to provide requested flows
- F. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for installing COMMISSION approved backflow device
- G. The GOLF COURSE will submit a water conservation and management plan to include water efficiency measures and operational plan.
- H. It may be terminated upon sixty (60) days written notice by either party sent to the normal place of business.
- I. THIS AGREEMENT shall supersede and replace all prior Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements between the COMMISSION and the GOLF COURSE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as to the last date written below.

Date

General Manager, Medford Water Commission

Date

Quail Point Golf Course

Emergency Metered Water Service Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the City of Medford, by and through its Board of Water Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the COMMISSION, and the ROGUE VALLEY COUNTRY CLUB GOLF COURSE, hereinafter referred to as the GOLF COURSE.

Witnesseth:

WHEREAS, there is an existing dedicated service and meter with an air gap which could be used in case of an emergency to supply water to the GOLF COURSE; and

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION may have some surplus water during such an emergency in the service area supplying this service;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, it is mutually agreed as follows:

- A. The COMMISSION will allow up to 500,000 gallons of water to be supplied per day to the GOLF COURSE at a flow rate and time schedule determined by the COMMISSION which will minimize the impacts to existing customers.
- B. Water will only be supplied to the GOLF COURSE if there is a surplus and such supply will not be detrimental to the COMMISSION'S existing customers. The COMMISSION reserves the right to reduce or stop metered service at any time if deemed necessary for any reason.
- C. The GOLF COURSE will be subject to the same rules of service as other customers within the system. This service shall be classified as an "Intermittent User" and the water rates and monthly meter charges will apply.
- D. The emergency water service use will only be activated or turned on by the COMMISSION upon 24 hours notification. Otherwise, the service will remain locked off by the COMMISSION.
- E. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for all costs associated with installing a water service to provide requested flows
- F. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for installing COMMISSION approved backflow device
- G. The GOLF COURSE will submit a water conservation and management plan to include water efficiency measures and operational plan.
- H. It may be terminated upon sixty (60) days written notice by either party sent to the normal place of business.
- I. THIS AGREEMENT shall supersede and replace all prior Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements between the COMMISSION and the GOLF COURSE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as to the last date written below.

Date

General Manager, Medford Water Commission

Date

Rogue Valley Country Club Golf Course

Emergency Metered Water Service Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between the City of Medford, by and through its Board of Water Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the COMMISSION, and the STEWART MEADOWS GOLF COURSE, hereinafter referred to as the GOLF COURSE.

Witnesseth:

WHEREAS, there is an existing dedicated service and meter with an air gap which could be used in case of an emergency to supply water to the GOLF COURSE; and

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION may have some surplus water during such an emergency in the service area supplying this service;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, it is mutually agreed as follows:

- A. The COMMISSION will allow up to 200,000 gallons of water to be supplied per day to the GOLF COURSE at a flow rate and time schedule determined by the COMMISSION which will minimize the impacts to existing customers.
- B. Water will only be supplied to the GOLF COURSE if there is a surplus and such supply will not be detrimental to the COMMISSION'S existing customers. The COMMISSION reserves the right to reduce or stop metered at any time if deemed necessary for any reason.
- C. The GOLF COURSE will be subject to the same rules of service as other customers within the system. This service shall be classified as an "Intermittent User" and the water rates and monthly meter charges will apply.
- D. The emergency water service use will only be activated or turned on by the COMMISSION upon 24 hours notification. Otherwise, the service will remain locked off by the COMMISSION.
- E. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for all costs associated with installing a water service to provide requested flows
- F. The GOLF COURSE is responsible for installing COMMISSION approved backflow device
- G. The GOLF COURSE will submit a water conservation and management plan to include water efficiency measures and operational plan.
- H. It may be terminated upon sixty (60) days written notice by either party sent to the normal place of business.
- I. THIS AGREEMENT shall supersede and replace all prior Emergency Metered Water Service Agreements between the COMMISSION and the GOLF COURSE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as to the last date written below.

Date

General Manager, Medford Water Commission

Date

Stewart Meadows Golf Course



Memorandum

то:	Commissioners Bob Strosser, Michael Smith, John Dailey, Jason Anderson, and Daniel Bunn
FROM:	Brian Runyen, PE, Engineering Manager Andy Huffman, Capital & Special Projects Coordinator
DATE:	Tuesday, April 13, 2022
SUBJECT:	Item 8 – Resolution 1810, Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Amendment to the Water Quality Improvements Project Construction Contract
OBJECTIVE:	Board Approval

Issue

Several items have been identified during the Water Quality Improvements Project construction contract which varied from the contract plans and specifications. These items have been delivered incidentally on a force account basis as managed and directed by the Owner.

Discussion

The Water Quality Improvements Project is providing pH adjustment to the finished water at 2 locations. As the project is advancing at each location there have been identified changes which have been addressed through the course of construction. These items include site civil, hard rock excavation, plumbing, electrical, and mechanical.

These changes were accounted for according to the stipulations within Volume 1, section 1-7-5, Payment for Force Account Work. Within this section, the contractor provides actual costs with appropriate contractually stipulated mark ups.

Financial Impact

This Water Quality Improvements Project contract with McClure & Sons is currently \$8,398,000.00. The sum of the changes is \$213,890.00. The amended contract value will be \$8,611,890.00. The anticipated costs for this CIP project for Fiscal Year 2021/22 is within the budgeted amount. The amount of the contract amendment exceeds the General Manager's signing authority.

Requested Board Action

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 1810, authorizing the General Manager to execute a Contract Amendment to the Water Quality Improvements Project construction contract with McClure & Sons, Inc. in the amount of \$213,890.00.

RESOLUTION NO. 1810

A RESOLUTION Awarding and Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Contract Amendment in the Amount of \$213,890.00 with McClure & Sons, Inc. for the Water Quality Improvement Projects

WHEREAS, a contract in the amount of \$8,398,000.00 was awarded by the Board of Water Commissioners through Resolution No. 1794 on November 3, 2021; and

WHEREAS, McClure & Sons, Inc. is qualified and agreeable to render additional items as presented by the Owner and Engineer to complete the Water Quality Improvement Projects.; and

WHEREAS, a contract amendment to the Water Quality Improvement Projects in the amount of \$213,890.00 has been presented by McClure & Sons, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the contract amendment price has been examined and has been found to be agreeable;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MEDFORD, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. A contract amendment to the Water Quality Improvement Projects in the amount of \$213,890.00 with McClure & Sons, Inc. is authorized.

SECTION 2. The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute said contract amendment and payments for said contract amendment with McClure & Sons, Inc.

PASSED at a regular meeting of the Board of Water Commissioners and signed by me in authentication thereof this 20th day of April 2022.

ATTEST:

Yvette Finstad, Asst. Clerk of the Commission

Bob Strosser, Chair